

RULES AND REGULATIONS

Table of Contents

General Club Rules	3
Loss or Destruction of Property or Instances of Personal Injury	4
Member Accounts	5
Resignation of Membership Privileges	5
Death or Divorce of Club Member	5
Suspension or Termination of Membership or Guest Privileges	6
Membership Transfer of Privileges	6
Club Services and Activities	6
Clubhouse Rules of Use	7
General Pond Rules	8
General Golf Rules	8
General Tennis Rules	12
Golf and Tennis Fair Play Policy	13
General Pool Rules	13

GENERAL CLUB RULES

The Clubhouse at Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club features a 18 hole golf course, 4 lighted tennis courts, a pool complex, full service dining room, bar, deck, covered pavilion, conference meeting room and pro-shop. In addition to hosting many social functions for Members, the Clubhouse dining and banquet facilities are available to Members and the public for meetings, parties, weddings and other celebrations or events. All Members are encouraged to take advantage of the numerous events and facilities available to them. Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club has adopted the following rules for the benefit and safety of all Members, Guests and Staff of the Club. Any person who disregards these rules may be subject to a written warning, suspension or termination of membership privileges.

- 1. Members and their guests are expected to abide by the rules and regulations of the Club
- 2. The Club Facilities shall be open on the days and during the hours established by the Club. Hours of operation are posted on the Clubhouse doors, Facebook and the Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club website (www.legendoaksgolf.com)
 - 3. Smoking/Vaping is not permitted in the Clubhouse.
- 4. All food and non-alcoholic beverages consumed or otherwise possessed on Club Facilities must be sold and purchased at the Club unless special arrangements are made with Club Management.
- 5. Alcoholic beverages shall not be served or sold, nor permitted to be consumed on Club Facilities during hours prohibited by law. Alcoholic beverages shall not be sold or served to any person not permitted to purchase the same under the laws of the State of South Carolina. All alcoholic beverages consumed or otherwise possessed on Club Facilities must be sold and purchased at the Club, unless special arrangements are made with Club Management. Club Management reserves the right to inspect any and all private coolers and/or golf bags which they may suspect contain alcoholic beverages not purchased from the Club.
- 6. Club Management reserves the right to refuse to sell to or serve alcohol to any Member or Guest, who, may be underage or has consumed too much alcohol. Club Management also reserves the right to refuse access to Club Facilities and service to any Member or Guest for any other reason which appears threatening or detrimental to the Club, its' Members or Guests.
- 7. Employees are permitted to deliver food, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages to locations away from the immediate area of the clubhouse, such as the pool, tennis courts and golf course.
- 8. Dining room activities for groups and performances by entertainers may be permitted on Club Facilities with the prior permission of Club Management.
- 9. Firearms and other weapons of any kind are not permitted on Club Facilities at any time, except as authorized by Club Management.
- 10. Commercial advertisements or solicitations shall not be posted or circulated on Club Facilities without prior permission of Club Management.
- 11. It is contrary to the policy of the Club to have its facilities used for functions or fund raising efforts for the benefit of a political cause, except as may be otherwise approved by the Club Management. The Club facilities shall not be used in connection with organized religious services or other activities except as may be approved by the Club Management.
- 12. Dogs and other pets, with the exception of authorized Service Dogs, are not permitted on any Club Facilities without the prior approval of Club Management, unless otherwise designated by Club Management. Members and Guests are responsible for damage or injuries caused by an animal owned by the member or guest or under the member's control. Dog walkers must clean up their dogs' waste and may not dispose of the waste in any Club Facility container or on Club property. Dog walkers must keep their dogs leashed at all times.
- 13. Parking is permitted in areas identified for parking. Parking is not allowed in non-designated areas. No parking will be allowed on grassed areas. "No Parking" signs shall be observed at all times. Temporary overflow parking will be made available when necessary.

- 14. Personal golf carts not registered with the Legend Oaks Trail Program, all other motorized vehicles, rollerblading, skateboarding, bicycling and other related activities are prohibited on the golf course, golf cart paths and the tennis courts, but may be used on the designated Connector Trail between the Club and the residential section of Legend Oaks "The Club". All operators of golf carts must be at least 16 years of age and own a valid driver's license.
- 15. Jogging, recreational walking and dog walking on the golf course and golf cart path is only permitted during non business hours (before 7:00 am and after dusk).
- 16. Members and their guests displaying abusive, rude or unsafe behavior towards other members, guests or employees, verbally or otherwise, is not permitted. Club Management reserves the right to refuse access to Club Facilities and service for those demonstrating abusive behavior.
- 17. All employees are under the supervision of Club Management and no member or guest shall reprimand or discipline any employee or send any employee off Club Facilities for any reason. Any employee not rendering courteous and prompt service should be reported to Club Management immediately.
- 18. All complaints, criticisms or suggestions of any kind relating to any of the operations of the Club should be made in writing, signed and sent to Club Management.
- 19. Violation of any of these rules or conduct in a manner prejudicial to the best interests of the Club shall subject the person in violation to disciplinary action as provided herein.
- 20. The Club reserves the right to amend or modify these Rules and Regulations in its sole discretion and shall notify the membership of any change.

LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY OR INSTANCES OF PERSONAL INJURY

- 1. Members and Guests using Club Facilities are solely responsible for their property. The Club shall not be responsible for any loss or damage to any private property on Club Facilities.
- 2. Property or furniture belonging to the Club shall not be removed from the room or area in which it is placed or from the Club Facilities, without proper authorization. Members shall be liable for any property damage caused by the member, their family or guest, while on Club Facilities, or at any activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club. The cost of any damage shall be charged to the responsible member's club account.
- 3. Members shall be liable for any personal injury caused by them, their family member or guest, to themselves, their family member, guest or another member or guest, while on Club Facilities or at any activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club.
- 4. Any member or guest who makes use of any apparatus, appliance, facility, privilege or service owned, leased or operated by the Club, including without limitation, the use of golf carts, or who engages in any function, organized by the club, either on or off the Club Facilities, shall do so at their own risk. The member or guest shall hold Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club and its employees, harmless from any and all loss, cost, claim injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by the member, resulting from any act or omission of any such employee. Any member or guest shall have, owe and perform the same obligation to Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club and its employees in respect to any such loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by any guest of the member.
- 5. Should any member bring suit against Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club for any claim and fail to obtain judgment therein against Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club, Inc. the member shall be liable to the entity for all costs and expenses incurred by Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club, in the defense of such suit including attorneys' fees (including fees required in connection with appellate proceedings).

MEMBER ACCOUNTS

- 1. A membership card indicating a club account number shall be issued to the Club Member as well as other eligible members of the family upon joining the Club and initial payment of dues by the member. A Key Fob will be issued to Memberships requiring controlled access. Membership cards or Key Fobs may be necessary to obtain entry to Club Facilities. Membership cards or Key Fobs may be required when accessing Club Facilities. Membership cards may be required at the point of sale for all transactions to ensure proper billing. Membership cards and Key Fobs are non-transferable.
- 2. A membership card or Key Fob may not be used by any person other than the person to whom it is issued or an authorized family member. Failure to comply with this rule may result in the suspension or termination of membership privileges.
 - 3. Members are required to keep on file with the Club a current and valid credit card number.
- 4. Each member shall be responsible for filing with the Membership Office in writing, the mailing address, email address, personal information and any changes required for communications and invoices sent from the Club. A member shall be deemed to have received mailings from the Club ten days after they have been sent to the address(es) on file with the Membership Office.
- 5. The Club shall be notified in writing immediately of a lost or stolen Membership Card or Key Fob. The member shall be responsible for all charges placed on the account until written notification of card or Key Fob loss has been received by the Club. A Membership Card or Key Fob replacement fee, as determined by the Club, may be charged for lost or stolen Membership Cards or Key Fobs or in any situation where the club account number is changed.
- 6. All food, beverage, merchandise and services of the Club charged to the Member's Club account shall be due and payable upon receipt of the monthly statement. Member's Club accounts shall be considered delinquent if not paid within thirty (30) days after the date of the monthly statement. Your account may be assessed a late charge and/or interest will be added to all outstanding balances. Members with delinquent accounts will be put into the Club's Delinquent Club Account Policy process as detailed in the Club By-Laws.

RESIGNATION OF MEMBERSHIP PRIVILEGES

1. Club Members who desire to resign their membership privileges must do so at the end of the calendar year, during December, as all memberships are perpetual and auto-renew. The resignation of membership privileges will become will become effective January 1st of the following year. Any outstanding dues, fees or charges must be paid in full before the resignation will be accepted. Resignations will not be accepted at any other time, without an applicable early termination fee and prorated dues for the full month. Members must also give the Club 30 day's prior written notice of their intention to resign their membership privileges. There shall be no refund of membership initiation fees.

DEATH OR DIVORCE OF CLUB MEMBER

- 1. Upon the death of a Club Member, the membership privileges may be transferred to the member's surviving spouse without payment of any additional membership initiation fee. In the event there is no surviving spouse or the surviving spouse does not desire to continue membership at the Club, their membership shall be deemed resigned.
- 2. In the event a Club Member is legally separated or divorced, the Club membership shall remain vested in the individual designated as the member in the Application of Membership Privileges, unless otherwise agreed to and set forth in a written separation agreement or final divorce decree. In this event, the legally separated or divorced spouse who does not retain the membership privileges will no longer have any membership privileges at the Club. The Club will not be involved in any dispute and

has the right to suspend all membership privileges, in the event of disagreement over which spouse retains the membership privileges.

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP OR GUEST PRIVILEGES

- 1. Notwithstanding any suspension or termination of membership, the member and the member's spouse shall remain liable for any amounts unpaid on the member's account, annual dues, annual amenity fees and other charges.
- 2. A Membership or a Guest's privileges may be suspended or terminated by the Club if, in the sole judgment of the Club the member or guest:
 - a. submits false information on the Application of Membership Privileges;
 - b. permits the use of the membership card, key fob or club account by anyone other than those designated on the Application of Membership Privileges;
 - c. exhibits unsatisfactory behavior, temperament or appearance;
 - d. fails to pay any amount owed to the Club, resulting in a delinquent account status;
 - e. fails to abide by these Rules and Regulations as set forth for use of Club Facilities;
 - f. treats Club employees, members or guests in an unreasonable or abusive manner;
 - g. fails to accompany a day guest when the guest is using the Club Facilities; or
 - h. fails in or refrains from any other conduct or obligation determined by the Club as appropriate for suspension or termination of membership.
- 3. The Club may at any time, restrict or suspend, for cause or causes described herein, any member's or guest's privileges to use any or all of the Club Facilities.
- 4. Any member of the Club who has had membership privileges suspended or terminated for any will be permitted to use the Club Facilities open to the public, at public rates, unless they have been banned from the Club Property by Club Management.
- 5. In the event a membership plan is recalled by the Club or is otherwise terminated by the Club without cause, 100% of the actual membership initiation fee previously paid to the Club, within the last 12 months prior to termination for membership privileges, by such affected member(s) shall be refunded to those members, without interest, and such member(s) shall no longer have any rights or privileges to use Club Facilities.

MEMBERSHIP TRANSFER OF PRIVILEGES

1. Specific Membership Plans are eligible to be transferred if and when the Member sells their home, to the new home owner. The Member must be in good standing at the time of transfer. Any transfer of Membership will require a transfer form completed by the current member, including a transfer fee payable to the Club within 30 days of the real estate closing. Transfer fee may be paid by the seller or buyer, where by the person responsible for payment must be indicated on the transfer form submitted to the Club. Transfer fees vary depending on membership type. The Club reserves the right to change the amount of transfer fees at any time.

CLUB SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES

1. The Club provides a variety of dining, social, sports and recreational special events in which all members are eligible to participate. Golf, Tennis and Swim Clinics/Lessons are offered for adults and children. Guests are eligible to participate in events/clinics/lessons not designated "Members Only".

- 2. Special event functions are scheduled from time to time at the discretion of the Club. Special Events dates and times are announced in the Club Monthly Newsletter, Weekly Email Blasts, Club Website Calendar of Events, and Community Bulletin Board at the entrance road to the Clubhouse and on the Club bulletin board in the main entrance of the Clubhouse.
- 3. Club Management reserves the right to close Clubhouse Facilities for private events from time to time. Dates and times will be communicated to Members and Guests via Email Blasts and Facebook Posts.
- 4. The Club invites the use of Club Facilities by members for private parties during normal business hours. Members must make arrangements with the appropriate Club Personnel for private parties at any Club Facility prior to the date of the event.
- 5. The sponsor of a private party shall be responsible for any damage to Club Facilities and for the payment of any charges not paid by individuals attending the private party.

CLUBHOUSE RULES OF USE

Attire

- 1. It is expected that members shall dress in a fashion befitting the surroundings and atmosphere provided in the setting of the Club and that members shall advise their guests of these dress requirements. All members and guests shall be required to wear proper attire at all times.
- 2. The following are guidelines for appropriate Clubhouse attire. Shirts, bottoms (pants, shorts, skirts, dresses, etc.) and shoes must be worn at all times. This dress code shall be mandatory for everyone. Improperly dressed members and guests shall be asked to change.

Allowed: shirts, bottoms, athletic apparel, bathing suit with cover-ups and shoes

Not Allowed: bathing suit without cover-up, wet bathing suits (outside seating only), bare feet, no shirt, no bottoms

3. The dress standards of the Club may be waived by Club Management for special activities and functions.

Children

- 1. Children under the age of twelve are permitted to use the Clubhouse Facilities only if accompanied or supervised by an adult over the age of 16.
- 2. Children over the age of twelve are permitted to use Clubhouse Facilities, including the indoor and outdoor dining areas and bathrooms.
 - 3. Children are not permitted to loiter in the Clubhouse Facilities either indoors or outdoors.
 - 4. Food purchases (excluding candy and drinks) are required when using Clubhouse Facilities.
 - 5. Children are required to consume their food purchases at a table and in a timely manner.
 - 6. Children are not permitted to eat or loiter on the front deck of the Clubhouse.
 - 7. Specific Golf, Tennis, Pool and Pond Rules address additional limitations for Children.

Reservations and Cancellations

1. Dinner reservations for casual dining are required for groups of 10 or more and should be made 24 hours prior to dining time.

- 2. Reservations for weekly dining events such as Thirsty Tuesdays, Wacky Wings Wednesday, Thursday Family Dinner and Friday Night Trivia, are strongly suggested. Members or guests without reservations will be seated on a first-come, first-served basis.
- 3. Reservations are required for most special events offered by the Club and shall be taken on a first-come, first-served basis by pre-registering with the designated event personnel at the Club. Members or guests without reservations will be seated on a first-come, first served basis.
- 4. Reservations for casual dining and weekly events shall be held for fifteen minutes after the reserved time.
- 5. Reservations for small parties and club activity groups should be made at least three weeks in advance. Special menu requests may be made with a Dining Supervisor or Manager.
- 6. Failure to cancel reservations for special events, parties, club activity groups or weekly dining events may result in an applicable charge to the member's club account which shall be determined by Club Management.
 - 7. All dining and special reservation policies shall be determined by Club Management.
- 8. No member or club committee shall plan or set dates for dining room activities without prior approval of Club Management.

GENERAL POND RULES

- 1. All ponds located on Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club property are private.
- 2. All ponds are habitats for alligators, snakes and other dangerous wildlife in the Lowcountry.
- 3. No fishing, swimming or walking near or around the ponds is allowed.
- 4. Golfers should not approach ponds to retrieve balls that have entered the water.
- 5. Discarding trash, litter or contaminated foreign materials or liquids is not allowed.
- 6. No feeding, antagonizing or approaching alligators and wildlife is allowed.
- 7. Failure to follow Pond Rules may result in membership suspension and/or legal action as deemed appropriate by Club Management.

GENERAL GOLF RULES

- 1. The Rules of Golf as adopted by the U.S.G.A. together with the Rules of Etiquette as adopted by the U.S.G.A. shall be the rules of the Club, except where in conflict with local rules or with any of the rules cited herein.
- 2. All players must have a starting time reserved through the Pro Shop, the online reservation system on our website or an affiliated online registration system. All players must check in with the Pro Shop and the starter.
- 3. Failure to check in and register 10 minutes prior to a reserved tee time may cause cancellation or set back.
- 4. Players late for their tee time may lose their right to the tee time and shall begin play only at the discretion of the starter.
 - 5. Under no circumstances are players permitted to start play from residences.
- 6. Players who fail to cancel their starting time one hour prior to their scheduled starting time may be charged a fee determined by Club Management.
 - 7. Each player must have his or her own set of golf clubs. Golf club sharing is not permitted.
- 8. Twosomes and singles must be available to be paired at Pro Shop discretion, however, they may, at the discretion of the Pro-Shop, be permitted to start after 1:30pm if space is available. Twosomes and singles should not expect to play through foursomes and should not exert any pressure on the groups ahead. Foursomes shall have the right of way.
 - 9. Groups are strictly limited to four players. Groups of five or more are not allowed at any time.

- 10. Players aged 6 10 years must be accompanied by an adult. The Pro Shop must be notified when players age 6 10 years are in your party. Junior players or groups including a junior player, just learning the game are asked to schedule off-peak tee times. No child under the age of 6 years is allowed on the golf course in any capacity.
- 11. Practice is not allowed on the golf course. Practice shall be limited to the driving range, practice putting green and other designated practice areas.
- 12. If a group of players fail to keep their place on the course and loses more than one clear hole on the players ahead, the group must allow the-group behind them to play through. The same shall apply where play is stopped to search for a lost ball. No more than three minutes may be used to search for lost balls. If a group falls out of position at any time, they will be given a warning and asked to regain their position on the golf course as quickly as possible. If a group is warned twice regarding pace of play, they will be required to skip as many holes as necessary to regain their position on the course. Any group that falls out of place a third time will be asked to discontinue play and reimbursement for fees will not be granted.
- 13. All players who stop after playing nine holes for any reason must return to the next tee before the group behind them arrives or they shall lose their position on the golf course.
- 14. All players must enter and leave bunkers at the nearest level point to the green, and smooth the sand over with a rake upon leaving.
 - 15. All players are required to repair their ball marks on the green.
- 16. All players are required to replace their divots with sand mix provided on the carts and at the 1st and 10th tee boxes.
 - 17. The sale of used or "found" golf balls is not allowed on the course at any time.
- 18. Golf rangers may be on duty to help regulate play and enforce golf rules. Golf rangers have full authority on the golf course to enforce all Club rules including pace of play.
 - 19. If lightning is in the area, all play shall cease. Listen for a siren indicating suspension of play.
- 20. Club Management may close the golf course whenever the grounds may be damaged by play, too dangerous for play or for maintenance purposes.
- 21. Appropriate golf attire is required for all players on the golf course and practice facilities at all times. Members are expected to insure their guests and family members adhere to dress code policies. This dress code shall be mandatory for all players. Improperly dressed golfers will be asked to change before playing. If you are in doubt concerning your attire, please check with the Pro-Shop before starting to play.

Appropriate Attire

<u>Allowed Men:</u> collared shirts with sleeves, mock neck and turtleneck shirts, golf pants and shorts, golf shoes with soft spikes

Not Allowed Men: denim jeans, tank tops, cutoffs, bathing suits, athletic apparel

Allowed Women: dresses, skirts, skorts, pants, shorts and shirts, golf shoes with soft spikes

Not Allowed Women: denim jeans, halter tops, t-shirts, cutoffs, bathing suits, athletic apparel

Golf Cart Rules

- 1. Golf carts shall not be used by a member or guest on Club Facilities without registering in the Pro Shop.
- 2. Personal golf carts not registered with the Legend Oaks Trail Program are not permitted on the golf course or golf cart paths during play.

- 3. Each operator of a golf cart must be at least sixteen years of age and have a valid automobile driver's license and obey all golf cart traffic signs. All riders must pay the cart rental fee before playing or riding with a player.
 - 4. Only two persons and two sets of golf clubs are permitted per golf cart.
- 5. Golf carts will be filled to match the number of in a group. One or two riders fill one cart; three or four riders fill two carts.
 - 6. Golf carts should be driven in the rough wherever possible.
- 7. Always use golf cart paths where posted. Use the ninety degree rule when in effect and cross fairways only at right angles. Players are required to remain on golf cart paths, without exception on Par 3 holes.
- 8. Except on golf cart paths, do not drive a golf cart within thirty feet of a green, a tee or a bunker. Golf Carts shall not be driven through a hazard.
- 9. When weather conditions dictate that you drive *only* on cart paths or in designated areas, signs will be posted in the Pro Shop and on the course. Use care to avoid soft or wet areas on fairways, particularly after rains.
- 10. The operation of a golf cart is at the sole risk of the operator. Cost of repair to a golf cart which is damaged or misused by a member shall be charged to the member's account. The cost of repair to a golf cart damaged or misused by a guest shall be charged to the guest.
- 11. All players using a golf cart accept and assume full responsibility for liability connected with operation of the golf cart (See LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY ORINSTANCES OF PERSONAL INJURY #4).
 - 12. "Course Closed" or "Hole Closed" signs are to be adhered to without exception.
- 13. Violations of the golf cart rules may result in loss of playing and/or golf cart privileges as determined by Club Management. No refunds will be given to the violators.

Tee Time Reservations

Legend Oaks Golf Members

- 1. Members may make tee time reservations 14 days in advance for daily play. League play may be reserved 60 days in advance by the league captain.
- 2. Members that have recurring weekly tee times must contact the Pro Shop 3 days prior to the first tee time to confirm player count.
- 3. Tee times reserved by a member, without a specified number of players, will be presumed to be a reservation for 4 players.
 - 4. Member tee times with 3 or less players may be regrouped by the Pro Shop to a foursome.

Non-Members

- 1. Non-members may make tee time reservations up to 6 days in advance.
- 2. Multiple tee time reservations for non-members of 8 or more players require a credit card be placed on file in the Pro Shop.
- 3. Failure to notify the Pro Shop of cancelations or changes to a reservation less than 24 hours prior to a tee time may result in a cancelation fees.
- 4. Non-Member tee times with 3 or less players may be regrouped by the Pro Shop to a foursome.

Golf Course Etiquette

Persons using the golf facilities at Legend Oaks should do their part to make a round of Golf at the Club a pleasant experience for everyone. Here are some suggestions:

- 1. Anticipate the club(s) you may need and go directly to your ball. Always be ready to play promptly when is it your turn. If a player is delayed in making his shot the player should indicate to another player to play their shot, which will not be deemed playing out of turn.
- 2. When approaching a green, park your golf cart on the path nearest to the next tee box. This can save about one-half hour per round. Never leave the golf cart in front of the green causing you to go back to get it, while the following players wait for you to clear the green.
- 3. Study the clear the line of your putt while others are doing the same. Be ready to putt when it is your turn.
- 4. When play of a hole is completed, leave the green promptly and proceed to the next tee. Record the score for the completed hole while the others in your group are teeing off at the next tee.
- 5. If you are not holding your place on the course (See General Golf Rules #12), allow the players behind you to play through. Do the same if you stop to search for a lost ball.
 - 6. The golf rangers shall report slow play and all breaches of golf etiquette to Pro Shop.

Golf Handicap Rules

- 1. Handicaps are computed under the supervision of the Golf Professional in accordance with the current U.S.G.A. Handicap System (GHIN), along with the Handicap Committee.
- 2. All Members and Guests with a U.S.G.A. approved handicap may participate in Club tournaments. All handicaps submitted may be reviewed by the Golf Professional.
- 3. To establish a handicap, a member or guest must post a minimum of five scores. Players are responsible for posting their scores on a daily basis. Any player failing to post a tournament score will result in a score being posted by the Pro Shop that is equal to their lowest score on record. The Pro Shop shall assist any members needing help with the posting procedures.

Handicap Committee

The Legend Oaks Handicap Committee consists of volunteer members. The Club appreciates and welcomes any members that would like to be involved in the committee. Please contact the Pro Shop if you are interested in volunteering.

The following are the roles of the Handicap Committee:

- 1. Monitor rounds played on Legend Oaks Tee Sheet vs rounds posted to GHIN.
- 2. Assist with GHIN Handicap verification for Legend Oaks Golf Tournaments.
- 3. Assist with Legend Oaks Golf Course rating.
- 4. Assist with education on Handicap posting procedures.

For more information, please review the Legend Oaks Handicap Committee tab on the Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club Website: www.legendoaksgolf.com.

Golf Practice Facilities

Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club features various practice areas within the proximity of the Clubhouse. The practice facility includes a driving range, chipping green, practice sand bunker, putting green and teaching area.

- 1. The practice facilities are open during normal golf course operating hours as posted in the Pro Shop. The Pro Shop will post the times in which the practice areas will be closed for regularly maintenance.
- 2. Range balls may be picked up in the Pro Shop. Members receive 3 complimentary bags of range balls daily. Guests with tee times are allowed to purchase range balls in the Pro Shop.
- 3. Range balls are for use on the driving range only. Range balls may not be used on the golf course. Range balls are the property of Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club and shall not be removed from the Clubhouse or driving range area. Anyone found in violation of this rule is subject to a fine from the Club.
 - 4. Practice is limited to the Driving Range Specifications posted in the Pro Shop.
- 5. Golf Carts are not permitted on any practice area. Parking of golf carts is allowed in designated areas only.
- 6. Balls must be hit from designated areas. No hitting is permitted from the rough or sides of the driving range.
- 7. Proper golf attire, consistent with that acceptable for the golf course, is required at all times on the driving range.
 - 8. Hand bag shaggers are not permitted.
 - 9. All practice must be approved by the Pro Shop Staff.
 - 10. Teaching is provided exclusively by the Legend Oaks Professional Golf Staff.

GENERAL TENNIS RULES

- 1. The tennis facilities are for the use of Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club Members with tennis privileges and their authorized guests only.
 - 2. Hours of play are from 7:00 am 10:00 pm, year around, seven days a week.
 - 3. The rules of the U.S.T.A. shall apply at all times, except when in conflict with the local rules.
- 4. Legend Oaks reserves the right to close the courts for maintenance, special club events or adverse weather conditions as determined by Club Management.
 - 5. All members and guests play at their own risk.
- 6. Legend Oaks Golf and Tennis Club is not responsible for loss, damage or theft of personal property during play or left at the courts after play.
- 7. Members must accompany guests on the courts at all times, including CALTA/USTA League only players.
 - 8. Appropriate tennis attire on the court is required at all times including tennis shoes and shirts.
- 9. Court reservations may be made by members in good standing only. Reservations may be made for 1-1/2 hours for singles play and 2 hours for doubles play, up to seven days in advance. Reservations can be made using the Foundation Tennis court reservation website/phone app or by contacting the Pro Shop.
- 10. CALTA, USTA League matches, clinics and lessons take precedence over walk on play. Walk on play is permitted on a first come first serve basis if a court is not reserved.
- 11. USTA/CALTA Leagues must adhere to all Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club Rules and the additional league rules:
 - a. All team captains must be members of Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club.
 - b. All team captains must present their team name and designation to the Legend Oaks Tennis Director two weeks prior to the start of a season.
 - c. All team captains are responsible for collecting the established Tennis League fee from non-members (League only players) they have invited to play on their team.
 - d. League only players must be current with required fees prior to practicing or playing a match. League only delinquent players will be put on a "No Play" list until fees are paid.

- e. The Legend Oaks Tennis Director will establish team practice schedules at the beginning of the season.
- 12. Formal tennis lessons provided only by the Legend Oaks Tennis Director and his staff. Outside tennis instruction is not permitted at anytime.
 - 13. The following proper tennis etiquette rules should be observed at all times:
 - a. Excessive noise or profanity is not permitted at any time.
 - b. Throwing or slamming of racquets and balls is not permitted at any time.
 - c. Players should wait until play on a court is finished before walking across to their court.
 - d. Be prompt sending back stray balls from adjacent courts
 - e. Place all trash including balls, ball cans, tops, drink containers, etc. in the trash bin located on each court.
 - f. The last person on a court should turn off all lights.
- 14. Any use of the courts for sports activities including skateboarding, scooter riding, basketball, etc. is strictly prohibited.

GOLF AND TENNIS FAIR PLAY POLICY

- 1. Legend Oaks Golf and Tennis Club is committed to fair play consistent with USGA and USTA Rules and local published club rules.
- 2. Any tournament, league, or sanctioned game must be managed in a transparent manner with members having first chance to participate.
- 3. Members that are coordinating a group game that is sanctioned by the Club must keep a record of all financial transactions for review by Club Management and return all completed scorecards from their game to the Pro Shop.
- 4. All golf events and Sanctioned Games will have information published on the Legend Oaks website.
- 5. USTA League information is available on the USTA website. Contact the Director of Tennis for information on USTA League Teams playing at Legend Oaks.

GENERAL POOL RULES

Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club has a pool complex on the property. The following pool rules have been adopted for the benefit and safety of all Members, Guests and Staff of the Club. Any person who disregards these rules may be subject to membership suspension or termination of privileges without right to a refund and possible fines.

- 1. The Pool facilities are for use by Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club members and their authorized quests with pool privileges only.
 - 2. Pool Hours are as follows:

Pool Hours - Monday - Sunday
April - October 10:00 am - 8:30 pm
Deck Only Hours
November - March 10:00 am - Dusk

- 1. Numbered membership fob(s) are required for entry to the pool facilities. Fobs are issued to new members upon completion of the membership process.
- 2. Use of Fob(s) by someone other than the assigned member is strictly prohibited without a valid pool pass.

- 3. Lost pool fob(s) must be immediately reported to the Membership Office. Replacement fob(s) are available from the Membership Office at the current established fee.
- 4. Each member family is entitled to a reasonable number of Daily Guest Passes per season. No more than five guests per visit is allowed. Guest passes must be picked up at the Membership Office or in the Pro Shop prior to entering the pool. Guests may not live in the Legend Oaks Community. Guests from communities surrounding Legend Oaks need prior approval from Club Management.
- 5. Life guards are not present at the pool. Members and their authorized guests swim at their own risk.
- 6. No children under the age of 14 will be permitted at the pool without being accompanied by an adult 18 years or older at all times.
- 7. All non-swimming children must be accompanied in the water by their parent or adult guardian at all times.
- 8. Flotation devices are permitted for non-swimming children up to the age of five years. Large inner tubes, flotation mattresses, etc. may be permitted depending on the number of people in the pool.
- 9. Disposable and cloth diapers are not allowed in the pool or on the deck. Pool approved infant/toddler swim safety diapers/pants are allowed.
 - 10. Appropriate swimwear is required. No cut-offs, shorts or thongs are allowed.
- 11. Dogs and other pets, with the exception of service animals are not permitted in the gated pool area.
- 12. Food and drink is permitted on the pool deck only. No glass containers of any kind are allowed inside the gated pool area.
 - 13. Smoking is not permitted in the pool or on the pool deck.
 - 14. Jumping, diving off the sides of the pool backwards or doing flips of any kind is not permitted.
 - 15. Climbing, jumping or diving off the pergolas will result in membership suspension.
- 16. Running, pushing, dunking, ball playing and noisy or dangerous activities are prohibited in the pool area.
- 17. Snorkeling equipment, other than a mask, shall not be used in the pool except a part of an organized course of instruction.
 - 18. Music may be played only at a low volume or with earphones.
- 19. All persons using pool furniture are required to cover the furniture with a towel when using suntan lotions. The use of these lotions may stain or damage the furniture.
- 20. Persons who leave the pool area for over thirty minutes must relinquish pool furniture by removing all towels and personal belongings. Saving of pool furniture for persons absent from the pool area is prohibited.
- 21. All persons using the pool facilities are responsible for properly disposing of their trash in the trash containers located in pool area.
 - 22. Abuse and/or vandalism to pool facilities, equipment or property is strictly prohibited.
- 23. Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club is not responsible for loss, damage or theft of personal property during pool use or items left at the pool after use.
- 24. The Legend Oaks Swim Team shares the pool during swim season May July. Practice and meet schedules are communicated through the Legend Oaks website swim team page, event calendar, at the pool and through Legend Oaks email blasts.
- 25. Club Management reserves the right to close the pool due to inclement weather, private parties, swim team practice, pool contamination, pool maintenance, etc.
- 26. In addition, Club Management will enforce the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control Pool Safety Rules posted at the pool.
- 27. Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club staff has full authority to enforce pool rules and any infractions will be reported to Club Management.

We hope you enjoy these excellent facilities your Club has to offer. If you have any questions or comment's regarding these guidelines or your experience, please feel free to contact Club Management at 843-821-4077.

Thank You,

Legend Oaks Golf & Tennis Club Club Management